
Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

      Willamina City Council Agenda  

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, March 13, 2018 6:00pm 

West Valley Fire District  
825 NE Main St, Willamina  

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL  

FLAG SALUTE 

AGENDA ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND CORRECTIONS 

GUEST:  Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Council Member Michael Langley and Confederated 
Tribes of Grand Ronde Planning Director Rick George. 

PUBLIC INPUT – BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

Public Input: Presentations not scheduled on the Agenda are limited to three (3) minutes. Longer 
presentations should be submitted to the City Recorder prior to the meeting. Anyone wishing to 
comment on an item of the Regular Agenda will need to sign in on the Sign in Form. 

CORRESPONDENCE - none 

CONSENT AGENDA   “(A listing of routine business items, which are adopted with one motion, 
without discussion. However, any COUNCILOR may request that an item be pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action. The item is then considered after the Consent 
Agenda items have been voted upon).” 

1. Check Registers – January 1 to 31, 2018 (information only) 
2. Financials January 2018 
3. Minutes from the February 13, 2018 City Council Meeting 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

Administration  

1. Consideration of Ordinance No. 670. An Ordinance of the City of Willamina amending 
Title lX, Chapter 91 of the Willamina Municipal Code relating to fees and penalties 
associated with the impoundment of abandoned or discarded vehicles. 

 

MAYORS REPORT 

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 



Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

4. Chamber Liaison (Councilor April Wooden) 
5. YCOM Board (Councilor Baller) 
6. Yamhill County Housing Authority Board Member (Councilor Stritzke) 
7. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 

 

INFORMATIONAL REPORTS FROM/CITY OFFICERS 

8. City Manager 
9. Sheriff’s Report 

 
EVENT CALENDAR- informational 

PUBLIC HEARING - none 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Consent Agenda  











































































































1 
 

City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 
 
 

City Of Willamina City Council Meeting 
Minutes of the Monthly Meeting of the City of Willamina City Council 

February 13, 2018 
6:00 PM 

  
Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
Present at Meeting: Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Council President Rita Baller 
Councilor Craig Johnson 
Councilor Heather Stritzke 
Councilor Bob Burr 
Councilor Theresa McKnight 
Councilor April Wooden 
City Manager Kenna West 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Public Works Director Jeff Brown 
Guest: (not limited to)  
Paul Daliquante, News Register 
Planning Commissioner Shirley Fitzgerald 
  
The regular meeting of the City of Willamina City Council was called to order at 6:00 PM 
on February 13, 2018 at West Valley Fire by Mayor Ila Skyberg. The Deputy City Recorder 
Debbie Bernard took the roll call and quorum was present. The Flag Salute was recited. 
  

I. Approval of Agenda 
  
The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved with 2 additions.   
  

II. Review of Previous Minutes 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved. 
  

III. Consideration of Open Issues 
  

1. Agenda Additions, Deletions, And Corrections 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg opened the meeting and noted 2 additions to the agenda.  She asked the 
Council if there were any pulls. There were no pulls. 
 
Councilor Baller wanted to know if there had been any funds available for training in the 
budget at the February 7, 2018 work session as she was absent.  



2 
 

City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 
 
 

 
The City Manager responded and said there is not any funds left in the budget, however, 
she is still looking at possible funds and appropriations.  
  

2. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Skyberg asked if there were any pulls to the consent agenda and there were none. 
She asked Council President to read the items on the consent agenda. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to approve the consent agenda and accept the 
additions to the agenda. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with 
Councilors, Johnson, Burr, Stritzke, Baller, McKnight and Wooden. All in Favor. 
 
Councilor Baller read the description of the consent agenda:  
 
Item 1 is the check register for December 1 through December 31, 2017 outlining those 
items paid by check during this time frame. 
 
Item 2 is the financial report outlining the income and expenses for December 2017. 
 
Item 3 is the minutes from the January 9, 2018 council meeting. 
 
Item 4 approves the City Manager as the Budget Officer and appoints her to that position 
for the preparation of the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget. 
 
Item 5 affirms the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Budget Committee and Proposed Budget 
Calendar. 
 
Item 6 approves the renewal of those liquor license applications which are attached to the 
staff report. 
 
Item 7 approves the Economic Improvement District nominees for the EID Advisory 
Committee and accepts the EID Annual Financial report. 
  

3. Regular Agenda - Consideration of The City Manager Salary Increase 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to approve the City Manager salary increase after the 
6 months anniversary of her employment. Councilor Wooden seconded the motion. 
Motion carried with Councilors, Johnson, Burr, Stritzke, Baller, McKnight and Wooden. 
All in Favor. 
 
Discussion: 
  
Mayor Skyberg introduced a 6 month review for the Kenna and said she has nothing but 
good things to say. Mayor Skyberg thanked Kenna for taking the position. She added 



3 
 

City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 
 
 

another thank you for all she does. She said that Kenna has a wonderful work ethic and 
she wanted to say thank you again.   
 
Councilor Wooden said “She has exceeded all my wildest expectations.” 
 
Councilor Baller said “You put a bright face out there for Willamina”. “People have a 
new view of Willamina than they had in the past.” 
 
Councilor Burr said “Your focus and fiscal responsibility is wonderful.” 
 
Councilor Johnson said he was impressed with Kenna’s resume. 
 
Councilor Stritzke said “She has had nothing but good feedback from citizens.” 
 

4. Consideration of The Cemetery Burial Plot Price Increase 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
MOTION: Councilor Stritzke moved to accept the consideration of the cemetery burial 
plot price increase. Councilor Burr seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors, 
Johnson, Burr, Stritzke, Baller, and McKnight.  All in Favor. Councilor Wooden 
abstained. 
 
Discussion: 
 
Councilor Wooden asked if any of the cemeteries were privately owned. The City 
Manager responded and said that McMinnville and Sheridan are private. Kenna said if we 
take out those two cemeteries, it out would bring the average cost per plot to $1243.00.  
 
Councilor Wooden added that she does not feel those private cemeteries should be 
considered in the analysis. She said that she did not feel an increase tenfold is a good 
idea. She said she would support $1000.00 increase. She sympathized with the increase. 
April shared that Buck Hollow Cemetery accumulated funds without doing much of 
anything. They own their own tractor and pay to have the lawn moved.  
 
Kenna said the City is subsidizing the cemetery at $1300 a year. That is not improving it 
just doing the minimum. Kenna added that even at 4 burials a year, the City is still 
subsidizing the cemetery.  
 
Kenna suggested cremation gardens that would increase the additional plot availability 
and allow more people in.  
 
Councilor Baller agreed with April about the increase amount but it is one price forever, 
she said. Rita added that we had people come out and advise us how to fix the headstones 
as it is a Pioneer Cemetery.  
 



4 
 

City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 
 
 

Jeff said the County work crew does the mowing as it is too time consuming for public 
works.  
 
Kenna asked Councilor Wooden if she wanted to make another motion. She moved to 
support an increase not to exceed $1000.00. There was not a second. Motion died. 
  

5. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Skyberg had nothing to report.  
 

6. Council Liaison Reports 
 

Chamber Liaison (Councilor April Wooden) 
Councilor Wooden reported that it was an EID meeting. The results of the meeting were 
all reading addressed and approved in the consent agenda. 
  

7. YCOM Board (Councilor Baller)   
Councilor Baller had nothing to report until after their next meeting.  
  

8. Yamhill County Housing Authority Board Member (Councilor Stritzke)  
Councilor Stritzke reported on several programs the Yamhill County Housing Authority 
offers. Specifically one for low income home buyers to do repairs on their homes. There 
is a mortgage assistance program for people that fall behind on their mortgage that can 
assist them from losing their home. The loans are interest free if the owner stays in the 
home for 5 years, she said. Heather reported that the Housing Authority has grants for 
homeowners to do repairs on Mobile Homes; those grants allow for repairs that are costly 
due to the value of the home. Kenna asked Councilor Stritzke if she could get some 
information that can be handed out by Code Enforcement when he is out and about.  
 

9. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 
Councilor Johnson reported the YCTA is what he calls under construction. They met with 
an advisory board that advised YCTA how to better assist the community and how to 
better use their funds. The Tribe attended that meeting and would really like to see a bus 
running on Sunday to the tribe. Another topic that was discussed was how to retain bus 
drivers. Craig said of course a response to that would be better pay for the drivers, 
however, they are looking for additional options.  They also discussed an increase in 
fairs.  
 

10. Informational Reports from/City Officers 
 
City Manager Kenna West said outside the City officer’s report she wanted to thank each 
one of the Councilors and the Mayor for their support.  Kenna said that the new street 
light in front of West Valley Fire on Main Street was only going to cost $6.52 a month. 
Also that we will be moving forward on the SDC rate review. In June the Yamhill 
County Commissioners will be here for their Town Hall.  

 
11. Sheriff’s Report 



5 
 

City Council Meeting Minutes of February 13, 2018 
 
 

 
Event Calendar – informational  
 
Public Hearing – none 
 
 
MOTION: Councilor Stritzke moved to adjourn. Councilor Baller seconded the motion. 
Motion carried with Councilors, Johnson, Burr, Stritzke, Baller, McKnight and Wooden. All 
in Favor. 

  
IV. Agenda and Time of Next Meeting 

  
The next meeting will be held at 6:00 PM on March 13, 2018 at:  
West Valley Fire 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
  

  
The meeting was adjourned at 6:45 PM by Mayor Ila Skyberg. 
  
Minutes submitted by: Deputy City Recorder, Debbie Bernard ______________________. 
  
Minutes approved by: Mayor Ila Skyberg_________________________________. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Regular Agenda  



Z:\CITY COUNCIL\CC AGENDAS\2017-2018\Memo Ordinance No. 670. 2017.03.03. REGULAR MEETING\Regular Agenda 
 

City of Willamina  
Staff Report 
For the City Council Meeting of March 13, 2018 
 

To:    Mayor and City Council 

From:   Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder   

Subject: Ordinance No. 670 adding an 
administrative fee for vehicle impounds 

ISSUE 

Shall the City Council approve Ordinance No. 670 adding an administrative fee of $50.00 on 
vehicle impounds.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends Council approve Ordinance No. 670. An Ordinance of the City of Willamina 
amending Title lX, Chapter 91 of the Willamina Municipal Code relating to fees and penalties 
associated with the impoundment of abandoned or discarded vehicles. 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 

It was brought to the attention of the City by the Yamhill County Sheriff's Office that other 
similar jurisdictions in Yamhill County charge an administrative fee to defray the costs to the 
cities of the tow expense on impounded vehicles.  The fees charged by other similar 
jurisdictions in Yamhill County range from $50.00 to $100.00.   
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 

• Staff is recommending an administrative fee of $50.00 to defray the cost of the tow 
expense on impounded vehicles.  
 

• Ordinance No. 670 is an ordinance of the City of Willamina amending title IX, chapter 91 
of the Willamina Municipal Code relating to fees and penalties associated with the 
impoundment of abandoned or discarded vehicles.   

PROPOSED MOTION 

1. I move to approve of Ordinance No. 670 and that the ordinance be read for the first reading 
in full and then by title.  

              Debbie Bernard 
           ________________________________________  

            Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder   
Attachments: Ordinance No. 670, Exhibit A 
  



ORDINANCE No. 670 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WILLAMNA AMENDNG TITLE lX, CHAPTER 91 OF THE 
WILLAMNA MUNICAPAL CODE RELATING TO FEES AND PENALTIES ASSOCIATED WITH 

THE IMPOUNDMENT OF ABANDONED OR DISCARDED VEHICLES 

 

WHEREAS, Title IX, Chapter 91 of the City of the Willamina Municipal Code (the “Code”) 
applies to abandoned or discarded vehicles impounded by or otherwise in the possession of the 
City; and  

WHEREAS, Code Section 91.99 (Penalty) currently imposes a fine of $50.00 per day on the 
owners of abandoned or discarded vehicles; and  

WHEREAS, the Willamina City Council desires to amend Code Section 91.99 to impose a one-
time $50.00 administrative fee, in addition to the current $50.00 per day penalty, in order to help 
recover the City’s costs related to the impoundment of abandoned or discarded vehicles; and  

WHEREAS, the City finds it is in the public interest to enact the changes the Code as set forth in 
this Ordinance.  

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF WILLAMNA, OREGON ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: The Code of the City of Willamina Title lX, Chapter 91 is hereby amended as set forth 
in Exhibit A.  

Duly adopted by the City Council this __day of __________, 2018. 

 

      _____________________________ 
      Ila Skyberg 
      Mayor 
 
Attest: 
_______________________________ 
Debbie Bernard 
Deputy City Recorder  
 
 
First Reading: __________________ 
Passed and adopted on second reading by the City Council of the City of Willamina this __day 
of ____, 2018, by the following vote and effective immediately upon adoption.  
Yeas____________ Abstain__________ 
Nays ___________ Absent__________ 
 
Second Reading: __________________ 
Passed and adopted on second reading by the City Council of the City of Willamina this __day 
of ____, 2018, by the following vote and effective immediately upon adoption.  
Yeas____________ Abstain__________ 
Nays ___________ Absent__________ 
 



EXHIBIT A 

 

CHAPTER 91: ABANDONED VEHICLES 

 

Section 91.99 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE AND PENALTY. 

Violation of this chapter shall result in a fine to the owner of the abandoned or discarded 
vehicle of $50 for each day the vehicle is not moved, in addition to a one-time 
administrative fee of $50 for vehicle impounds. The administrative fee and fine hereby 
imposed are in addition to any cost assessed pursuant to Section 91.12, as well as any 
other fees and penalties imposed pursuant to Title VII or other applicable law. 



    City     UCR Description 2/1/2017 to 
2/28/2017

2/1/2018 to 
2/28/2018

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Part 1

Aggravated Assault                 0 0 10

Arson                              1 1 1 1

Burglary-Business                  0 1 1 1

Burglary-Non-Residence             0 1 1 6

Burglary-Residence                 0 0 7

Larceny                            4 3 -25.00 % 8 52

Motor Vehicle Theft-Auto           0 0 1 5

Rape                               0 0 1

Part 1 Total 5 6 16.67 % 13 82

Part 2

All Other                          1 1 4 14

Animal Problems                    0 0 1

Disorderly Conduct                 0 2 3 14

Drug Laws                          3 2 -33.33 % 3 33

DUII                               1 2 100.00 % 2 10

Forgery                            0 0 1 1

Fraud                              0 0 6

Liquor Laws                        0 1 2 3

Runaway                            0 0 1 3

Sex Offenses                       0 1 1 12

Simple Assault                     2 1 -50.00 % 5 33

Stolen Property                    0 0 3

Tresspass/Prowler                  2 0 15

Vandalism                          3 5 66.67 % 7 24

Weapons                            0 0 3

Part 2 Total 12 15 20.00 % 29 175

Part 3

All Other                          2 6 200.00 % 20 96

Total For WILLAMINA 26 35 25.71 % 83 504

Report run date: 3/4/2018

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 2/1/2018 to 2/28/2018



    City     UCR Description 2/1/2017 to 
2/28/2017

2/1/2018 to 
2/28/2018

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Non-Reportable Offenses            7 8 14.29 % 21 151

Part 3 Total 9 14 35.71 % 41 247

Total For WILLAMINA 26 35 25.71 % 83 504

Report run date: 3/4/2018

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 2/1/2018 to 2/28/2018



  

January
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 01/01/18 (Mon) City Hall Closed New Year's Day holiday

1 2 3 4 5 6 01/15/18 (Mon) City Hall Closed Martin Luther King Jr. Day holiday
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 01/02/18 (Tue) Planning Commission Meeting meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 1/09/18 (Tue) City Council Regular Meetng meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27   meeting
28 29 30 31   

February
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 02/02/18 (Fri) Groundhog Day holiday

1 2 3 02/12/18 (Mon) Lincoln's Birthday holiday
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 02/14/18 (Wed) Valentines Day holiday
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 02/19/18 (Mon) President's Day - CITY HALL CLOSED holiday
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 02/06/18 (Tue) Planning Commission Meeting-CANCELED meeting
25 26 27 28 02/13/14 (Tues) City Council Meeting meeting

meeting
 meeting
March

Su M Tu W Th F Sa 03/17/18 (Sat) St. Patrick's Day holiday
1 2 3 03/11/18 (Sun) Daylight Saving (move clocks ahead 1 hour) holiday

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 03/06/2018 (Tue) Planning Commission meeting
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 03/13/18 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 03/15/18 (Thurs)
SEI Statement of Economic Interest Filing Email notice 
goes out meeting

25 26 27 28 29 30 31   
 

April
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 04/01/18 (Sun) April Fool's Day holiday
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 04/22/18 (Sun) Earth Day holiday
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 04/03/18 (Tue) Planning Commission meeting
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 04/10/18 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 04/15/18 (Sun) SEI Statement of Economic Interest Filing De  deadline
29 30

May
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 05/28/18 (Mon) Memorial Day - City Hall Closed holiday

1 2 3 4 5 05/13/18 (Sun) Mother's Day holiday
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 05/01/18(Tues) Planning Commission meeting
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 05/08/18 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 05/15/18 (Tues) First Budget Committee Meetig meeting
27 28 29 30 31

June
Su M Tu W Th F Sa

1 2 06/14/18 (Thu) Flag Day holiday
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 06/17/18 (Sun) Father's Day holiday
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 06/05/18 (Tue) Planning Commission meeting
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 06/12/18 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 06/12/18 (Tue) City Holds Public Hearing on 2018-19 Budget meeting

   - 

January 2018

2018 Schedule of Events

February 2018

March 2018

April 2018

CITY COUNCIL CALENDAR OF EVENTS

May 2018

June 2018


	Combined Consent Agenda March 13, 2018 (1)
	1. 2018.03.13.CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	1.a.Consent Agenda
	2.01-31-18 Check Register
	3.01-31-18 Financial Statements
	4. 2017.02.13.CC.REG.MINUTEScorporate-minutes-6064274

	Combined Regular Agenda March 13, 2018 (2)
	4.a. Regular  Agenda
	4.b.MEMO.Administrate Fee
	5. ORDINANCE No 670
	6. EXHIBIT A
	10. Crime Stats by City
	11. 2018 yearly_schedule_of_events (1)
	Schedule



